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Pursuant to Rule 11.1 of the California Public Utilities Commission’s Rules of Practice 

and Procedure, the Energy Storage Alliance (“CESA”)1 hereby submits this response to Pacific 

Gas and Electric Company’s Motion on Behalf of all of the Self Generation Incentive Program 

Managers, Requesting a Temporary Suspension of the Program, filed on December 22, 2010 

(the “PA’s Motion”). 

I. INTRODUCTION. 

This response is filed by CESA in support of the  PA’s Motion seeking approval to 

temporarily suspend accepting any new Self Generation Incentive Program (“SGIP”) 

applications2, effective December 22, 2010, until a final decision implementing Senate Bill (SB) 

412 (Stats. 2009, Ch. 182) is approved by the Commission and takes effect.  CESA agrees 

completely with the view expressed in the PA’s Motion that: “Unless a moratorium on new 

applications is put in place, projects of currently eligible technologies could consume all 

                                                 
1  The California Energy Storage Alliance consists of A123 Systems, Altairnano, Applied Intellectual Capital, 
Beacon Power Corporation, Chevron Energy Solutions, Debenham Energy, Deeya Energy, East Penn 
Manufacturing Co., Inc., Enersys, Enervault, Fluidic Energy, General Compression, Greensmith Energy 
Management Systems, Ice Energy, Lightsail Energy, International Battery, MEMC/SunEdison, Primus Power, 
Powergetics, Prudent Energy, Redflow, ReStore Energy Systems, Saft, Samsung SDI, SEEO, Silent Power, Suntech, 
Sunverge, SustainX, and Xtreme Power.  The views expressed in these Comments are those of CESA, and do not 
necessarily reflect the views of all of the individual CESA member companies.  http://www.storagealliance.org. 
2  Counsel is authorized to represent that CalWEA, the Distributed Wind Energy Association and Pacific 
Environment support this response. 
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available SGIP funding.”  CESA is deeply concerned that the existing SGIP rules allow a 

substantial percentage of authorized funds to be allocated to only a few participants, who have 

been able to use up nearly all available funds – thus making any proposed modifications to the 

program an effort in futility and completely undermining the purpose of the SGIP. 

The chart below illustrates the current renewable funding shortfall in the SGIP.3  All 

renewable (level 2) funding for 2010 is already gone, and a very large waitlist persists; as large 

as the total remaining Level 2 program funds (the blue and green bars from the table below 

include new funds authorized under SB 412)!  The chart on the following page illustrates the 

dramatic rate of growth of new fuel cell applications from Q2 2010 to Q3 2010.  If funds from 

the non-renewable category were moved to the renewable category, as demanded by fuel cell 

proponents, then the program budget would be rapidly depleted under current program rules; 

certainly before SB 412 is fully implemented!  

 

 

Furthermore, most of the Level 2 funding is being reserved by a very small group of companies, 

contrary to the market transformation objectives of the SGIP4.   

 

                                                 
3 Source:  Current Monthly Budget Reports for All SGIP Program Administrators (PG&E, SCE, SoCalGas, CCSE).  
“Remaining Total SGIP Funding” calculated as (2010/2011 Allocated Budgets + Authorized Carryover) – 10% 
Admin. Fee – 2010 Active Projects.   “Requested Level 2 Funds, Waitlisted Projects” calculated as fund requested 
from projects currently waitlisted with PG&E/CCSE 
4 Source:  Statewide Self-Generation Incentive Program Data, California Center for Sustainable Energy (10/06/10). 
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This data is consistent with the Opening and Reply Comments filed by parties and the 

summary table on page 2 of the PA’s Motion that (i) all renewable (level 2) funding for 2010 is 

already gone, and (ii) there is a very large waitlist that could realistically be anticipated to absorb 

all of the remaining Level 2 program funds.     

In order to preserve the status quo the Commission should also suspend all processing of 

new and existing applications that have net yet received Conditional Reservation Notice letters.  

It also seems fair that when the suspension is lifted the Program Administrators should not 

disregard progress on existing applications being processed at the time of suspension, but should 

resume processing those applications in the state that they had progressed to as of the date that 

the suspension is effective, presumably December 22, 2010.5 

II. THE COMMISSION’S INTENT TO EXPAND PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY IS 
VERY CLEAR, AND THE FACT THAT MORE FUNDING THAN WAS 
AVAILABLE HAS ALREADY BEEN UNEXPECTEDLY COMMITTED 
CANNOT BE CONTROVERTED. 

As stated in the PA’s Motion, consistent with Senate Bill 412 the Commission has 

underway a process to determine what additional technologies should qualify for the SGIP.  An 

                                                 
5 The Introduction to the PA’s Motion refers to accepting “new applications,” but refers on page 3 to an “intention 
not to process any 2011 applications.  CESA interprets the meaning to be that the PA’s seek a suspension of both 
acceptance of new applications and applications in process without a Conditional Reservation Notice letter as of 
December 22, 2010. 
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extensive staff proposal on this topic was circulated as an attachment to the Administrative Law 

Judge’s Ruling Requesting Comments on Staff Proposal Regarding Modifications to the Self 

Generation Incentive Program (“Staff Proposal”) issued on September 30, 2010.  With Opening 

Comments filed on November 15, 2010, and Reply Comments filed on December 10, 2010, the 

matter has been submitted and is awaiting issuance of a Proposed Decision. 

Taken as a whole, the Commission’s actions thus far and the content of the Staff Proposal 

demonstrate that considerable expansion of eligibility is intended.  As noted above, there is no 

doubt, and certainly no party has suggested, that there is a very real threat of a mismatch between 

the intent of the legislature and the Commission and the actual level of commitment that 

occurred in 2010.  Given that D.01-03-073, issued April 27, 2001, expressly delegated authority 

to the Assigned Commissioner to deal with SGIP issues as the need arises, it is more than 

reasonable that the PA’s Motion should by granted promptly, while the Commission moves 

ahead with the substance of SB 412 implementation6 

III. THE INTENT OF THE LEGISLATURE IN ENACTING SB 412 WOULD BE 
DEFEATED IF FUNDING IS GONE BEFORE PROGRAM MODIFICATIONS IN 
PROCESS BECOME EFFECTIVE. 

When SB 412 became effective on January 1, 2010, it was expected that program 

modifications would be made as expeditiously as possible during 2010, and would be 

implemented by the end of the second quarter of 2010.  The implementation process actually 

began on May, 26, 2010, with commencement of this proceeding, and the Staff Proposal was 

issued for comment on September 30, 2010.  It was not anticipated by anyone that there would 

be such significant time lags in the process or that program funds would be so rapidly committed 

to one technology over the same period.  Although the implementation process has run its course 

to the point of submittal for a Commission decision, there remain months of public comment and 

handbook revision ahead to fully achieve what the legislature intended when SB 412 was 

enacted.  Of course, one of the primary reasons that SB 412 was enacted was to return to the 

Commission the authority to admit new technologies that it originally had before it was restricted 

by AB 2778. 

                                                 
6   “We recognize that additional incentives for self-generation and demand-responsiveness programs may be 
authorized by the Legislature in the coming months.  As several parties point out, additional issues regarding 
eligibility and coordination may need to be addressed at that time.  We delegate to the Assigned Commissioner the 
task of clarifying these and other implementation issues by ruling, if and when such a need arises.”  (p. 35). 
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IV. WITHOUT A TEMPORARY SUSPENSION, TECHNOLOGIES, INCLUDING 
ENERGY STORAGE, WILL BE IRREVOCABLY DENIED THE 
OPPORTUNITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PROGRAM. 

The potential for additional funding is far from guaranteed in the current economic 

climate. As such, it is reasonable to assume that SGIP funding is very likely limited to existing 

funds and funds authorized under SB 412.  Under current incentive levels the pace of fuel  cell 

applications and reservations is such that once SB 412 is fully implemented, there will be no 

funding left for other technology classes, including energy storage.   

V. NO PARTY WOULD BE UNFAIRLY UNDULY PREJUDICED IF THE MOTION 
FOR A TEMPORARY SUSPENSION IS GRANTED. 

It is very noteworthy that, as of this writing, no party has objected to the PA’s Motion 

being promptly granted by the Commission.  Granting the PA’s Motion would have no material 

negative effect on parties holding Conditional Notice Reservation letters, and (as proposed by 

CESA) parties in the already in the pipeline with applications pending would retain their current 

status.  Since no legal rights would be compromised, it is reasonable to balance the strong 

likelihood of damage to the goals of the SGIP against the relatively modest inconvenience of a 

suspension to parties that have committed resources to processing applications thus far and grant 

the PA’s Motion. 

VI. CONCLUSION. 

CESA asks that the Commission act as expeditiously as possible to grant the PA’s 

Motion. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      
Donald C. Liddell 
DOUGLASS & LIDDELL 
 
Counsel for the  
CALIFORNIA ENERGY STORAGE ALLIANCE 

 
January 6, 2011 
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